
 
 
 

  

156 S. Broadway, Ste. 270, Turlock, CA 95380                         (209) 668-4142 (phone)   (209) 668-5695 (fax) 
 

Special Board Meeting Notice & Agenda 
October 20, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. 

156 S. Broadway, Turlock, CA, Second Floor, Yosemite Conference Room 
 

Chair, Amy Bublak  General Manager, Robert Granberg 
Vice Chair, Javier Lopez Interim Legal Counsel, Richard P. Shanahan 
Director, Pam Franco Finance Director, Marie Lorenzi 
Director, Vacant  Board Secretary, Angelica Gonsalves 
Director (alternate), Linda Ryno 
Director (alternate), Nicole Larson 
 

THIS MEETING WILL BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC.  SEATING CAPACITY WILL BE LIMITED TO 
THE FIRST 14 PEOPLE, ON A FIRST COME FIRST SERVE BASIS.  COMPLIANCE WITH ALL 

HEALTH & SAFETY GUIDELINES INCLUDING COVID-19 SCREENING, TEMPERATURE CHECKS, 
FACE COVERINGS, AND PHYSICAL DISTANCING MEASURES WILL BE REQUIRED FOR IN-

PERSON ATTENDANCE.  PLEASE PLAN TO ARRIVE APPROXIMATELY 15 MINUTES PRIOR TO 
THE SCHEDULED MEETING START TIME TO ALLOW FOR SCREENING PROCESSES.   

OR 
JOIN BY CLICKING ON THE MEETING LINK:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87219269659 

OR 
JOIN BY ACCESSING THE ZOOM WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

WEBINAR ID: 872 1926 9659 
OR 

JOIN BY TELEPHONE: 669-900-6833 
WEBINAR ID: 872 1926 9659 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE REGARDING NON-ENGLISH SPEAKERS:  The Stanislaus Regional Water Authority (SRWA) meetings are conducted in English and 
translation to other languages is not provided.  Please make arrangements for an interpreter if necessary. 
 
EQUAL ACCESS POLICY:  If you have a disability which affects your access to public facilities or services, contact the Board Secretary at the 
phone number set forth above.  The Board is committed to taking all reasonable measures to provide access to its facilities and services.  
Please allow sufficient time for the Board to process and respond to your request. 
 
NOTICE:  Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3, any member of the public may directly address the Board on any item 
appearing on the agenda, including Consent Calendar and Scheduled Matters, before or during the Board’s consideration of the item. 
 
AGENDA PACKETS:  Prior to the Stanislaus Regional Water Authority Board meeting, a complete Agenda Packet (excluding any closed session 
materials) is available for review on the SRWA’s website at www.stanrwa.com and in the Board Secretary’s Office at 156 S. Broadway, Suite 
270, Turlock, during normal business hours.  Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the 
Agenda Packet are also available for public inspection in the Board Secretary’s Office at the address set forth above.  Such documents may 
be available on the SRWA’s website subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before the meeting. 

https://zoom.us/join
http://www.stanrwa.com/


 Board Special Meeting Agenda 
October 20, 2021 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

  

1. A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
 

C. ROLL CALL 
 
2. RECOGNITION, APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS & PRESENTATIONS:  

A. Consider finding by a majority vote under Govt. Code § 54953(e)(1)(B) that as a result of the 
COVID-19 emergency (i) fully meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health 
or safety of attendees, and (ii) the meeting is authorized to be held by teleconference 
pursuant to Govt. Code § 54953(e)(1)(C). 

 
3. A. SPECIAL BRIEFINGS:  None 
    
 B. STAFF UPDATES 
 

1. General Manager Update (Granberg)   
2. Finance Director Report (Lorenzi) 

 
C. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:  This time is set aside for members of the public to address the Board 

concerning any item that has been described in the notice for the meeting, including Consent 
Calendar items, before or during consideration of that item.  You will be allowed five (5) 
minutes for your comments.  If you wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda, you may 
be asked to defer your remarks until the Board addresses the matter. 

 
4. DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND DISQUALIFICATIONS 
   
5. CONSENT CALENDAR:  Information concerning the Consent items listed below has been 

forwarded to each Board member prior to this meeting for study.  Unless the Chair, a Board 
member, or member of the audience has questions concerning the Consent Calendar, the items 
are approved at one time by the Board.  The action taken by the Board in approving the Consent 
items is set forth in the explanation of the individual items. 

 
A. Motion:  Approving minutes of Regular Meeting of August 19, 2021 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None 
 
7. SCHEDULED MATTERS:   
 

A. Resolution: Consider adoption of resolution authorizing General Manager to apply for a 
Proposition 50 Funding Program Grant for the Regional Surface Water Supply Project 
(Granberg) 
 

B. Motion:  Awarding a contract for professional auditing services to Maze & Associates 
Accountancy Corporation for audits of fiscal year 2020-21 and 2021-22 (Lorenzi) 

 
8. MATTERS TOO LATE FOR THE AGENDA 
 
9. BOARD ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION 
 



 Board Special Meeting Agenda 
October 20, 2021 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 

  

10. BOARD COMMENTS:  Board members may provide a brief report on notable topics of interest.  The 
Brown Act does not allow discussion or action by the legislative body. 

 
11. NEXT MEETING DATE:  November 18, 2021, Regular meeting  
 
12. CLOSED SESSION:  None 
 
13. TOUR THE REGIONAL SURFACE WATER SUPPLY PROJECT CONSTRUCTION SITE: Board members 
will tour the Regional Surface Water Supply Project construction sites, along with an informational 
briefing by and question and answers with Authority staff and the project contractor. The tour will 
take place following conclusion of the agenda business at 1235 Aldrich Rd., Hughson, CA. Members of 
the public are welcome to attend the tour. Attendees must provide their own transportation and 
should wear shoes and clothing appropriate for walking outdoors on uneven ground.  Please see 
attached map for directions from Ceres and Turlock 
 
14.  ADJOURNMENT  
 
 
 



  

 
 

From:   Angelica Gonsalves, Secretary 

Prepared by:  Robert Granberg, General Manager 

 ACTION RECOMMENDED: 

Motion: Adopt a motion that the Board find that, as a result of the 
COVID-19 emergency, meeting in person would present 
imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees, and 
the meeting therefore should be held by teleconference as 
authorized by Government Code section 54943, subdivision 
(e)(1)(C) (AB 361), which authorizes Board meeting 
participation by teleconference   

 DISCUSSION OF ISSUE: 

In light of the Governor’s declaration that a state of emergency exists due to 
the incidence and spread of the novel coronavirus, and the pandemic caused by 
the resulting disease COVID-19, the Board should consider whether meeting in 
person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of meeting 
attendees. 

As of September 23, 2021, state officials are no longer requiring or 
recommending social distancing measures; however, the Stanislaus County 
Department of Health is recommending social distancing measures in addition 
to the wearing of masks. Staff therefore have determined that meeting in 
person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees. 
Because of this local recommendation and risk, it is advisable the Board 
authorize Board meeting participation by teleconferencing under the rules of 
AB 361.  

Conducting meetings by teleconference would directly reduce the risk of 
transmission among meeting attendees, including members of the public and 
Authority staff, which has the ancillary effect of reducing risk of serious illness 
and death as well as reducing community spread of the virus. 

This authorization, if passed by a majority vote, would be in effect for 30 days.  
The next regularly scheduled Board meeting is November 18, 2021, or 29 days 
from the date of this Board meeting.  Since the next meeting would be held 
within 30 days of this action, the Board would need to renew this authorization 
if the conditions still exist at that time. 

 FISCAL IMPACT / BUDGET AMENDMENT:  

There is no fiscal impact to this action. 

 GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Recommends authorizing Board meeting by teleconferencing. 

 ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: 

Item 2A 
Board Synopsis 

Board Meeting Date 



Item 2A 
Agenda Synopsis 

10/20/21 
Page 2 

 
 

  

N/A 

 ALTERNATIVES: 

If the Board chooses to not authorize meeting by teleconferencing, then no 
further business may be conducted by teleconference and the meeting must be 
adjourned and rescheduled in compliance with the regular Brown Act. 



 
 
 
To:  SRWA Board 
 
From:  Marie Lorenzi, Finance Director 
 
Subject: Financial Summary as of October 13, 2021 
 
 
Attached Financial Documents include: 
 
Activity for YTD Fiscal June 30, 2021  
 

1 – SRWA financial status as of 10-13-2021 for the 2020-21 fiscal year (Exhibit A): 
 Revenue received from the participating agencies $47,284,850 
 Expenses paid total $41,089,527.29 
 
2 – SRWA financial status – life to date as of 10-13-2021 (Exhibit B): 
 Revenue life to date totals $67,076,812.47 (includes $105,512.10 of interest) 
 Expenses life to date total $58,521,338.26 
 Cumulative unexpended Revenues $ 8,555,474.21 

 
Activity for YTD Fiscal June 30, 2022  
 

1 – SRWA financial status as of 10-13-2021 for the 2020-21 fiscal year (Exhibit C): 
 Revenue received from the participating agencies $28,125,000 
 Expenses paid total $11,682,199.99 
 
2 – SRWA financial status – life to date as of 10-13-2021 (Exhibit D): 
 Revenue life to date totals $95,201,812.47 (includes $105,512.10 of interest) 
 Expenses life to date total $70,203,538.25 
 Cumulative unexpended Revenues $ 24,998,274.22 

 
 
Unpaid Invoices received as of 10-13-2021 
 

3 – The following invoices are in the process of being paid as of 10-13-2021 and the related costs 
are not included in the information presented above. 
 

Association of CA Water Agencies - dues 4,180.00            

4,180.00$           

 
 
 

 
3B2 

October 20, 2021 



Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
For FY 2020-21    (Updated 10-13-2021)

Account Name

Original 

Budget Amendments

Amended 

Budget 

2020-21

Unaudited 

Actual 

2020-21 Ceres Turlock TID

Totals for 

2020-21

REVENUES

Interest Income 0 29,123.44 10,828.73 17,471.32 823.39 29,123.44

34900_001 Agency Contrinbution - City of Turlock 38,257,747 (299,005) 37,958,742 30,957,500.00 30,957,500.00 30,957,500.00

34900_002 Agency Contribution - City of Ceres 19,509,718 (146,110) 19,363,608 15,375,000.00 15,375,000.00 15,375,000.00

34900_004 Agency Contrinbution - Turlock Irrigation District 1,075,231 (9,785) 1,065,446 952,350.00 952,350.00 952,350.00

   Total Revenues 58,842,696 (454,900) 58,387,796 47,313,973.44 15,385,828.73 30,974,971.32 953,173.39 47,313,973.44

EXPENSES

Pre-Treatment Plant Construction Project Expenses (950-53-552)

43060_012 Contact Services Program Mgmt 125,628 125,628 91,518.21 45,760.88 45,711.63 45.70 91,518.21

43195 Special Legal Counsel 38,500 (31,500) 7,000 8,023.70 4,011.85 4,011.85 0.00 8,023.70

43332 Permitting 7,000 7,000 276.00 138.00 138.00 276.00

43332_002 Permitting - Water Rights Acquisition 20,000 20,000 0.00

45002_000 TID - electrical service 5,000 5,000 3,289.63 1,096.43 2,193.20 0.00 3,289.63

51001 Property Acquisition - facility site 1,508,508 1,508,508 1,439,412.51 479,756.19 959,656.32 0.00 1,439,412.51

51001 Property Acquisition - infiltration gallery 739,442 739,442 740,851.49 246,925.80 493,925.69 0.00 740,851.49

51001 Property Acquisition - Geer Road easement 132,300 132,300 92,200.00 92,200.00 92,200.00

51001 Property Acquisition - delivery facilities 50,000 50,000 14,787.76 7,393.88 7,393.88 14,787.76

Treatment Plant Construction - SRF funding eligible (950-53-553)

43060_012 Contract Services - Program Mgmt Services 2,733,688 (851,500) 1,882,188 902,127.69 369,181.11 519,242.76 13,703.82 902,127.69

43195 Special Legal Counsel 29,700 31,500 61,200 36,490.50 17,885.82 17,885.82 718.86 36,490.50

43329 Environmental Services 233,500 233,500 122,396.01 52,001.07 52,677.22 17,717.72 122,396.01

43332 Permitting 71,014 71,014 0.00 0.00

 CDFW LSAA for 3 lateral crossings 13,351.25 0.00 13,351.25 0.00 13,351.25

  Stanislaus County - Aldrich Road crossing 25,820.00 8,605.81 17,214.19 0.00 25,820.00

  Stanislaus County - Lateral 2, 2.5 & 3 crossing 16,220.00 0.00 16,220.00 0.00 16,220.00

43332_001 Permitting - Environmental Mitigation 214,000 214,000 0.00

  Transplant credits 26,000.00 6,934.20 13,865.80 5,200.00 26,000.00

   Mitigation credits 151,500.00 40,405.05 80,794.95 30,300.00 151,500.00

51802_001 Regional Trtmt Plant - Design/Build Contract 54,947,428 54,947,428 36,934,546.94 11,478,661.44 24,881,686.52 574,198.98 36,934,546.94

51802_002 Regional Trtmt Plant - Contract Management 0 396,600 396,600 234,091.74 75,190.27 153,868.50 5,032.97 234,091.74

Administrative Expenses (950-53-552)

43055_002 Consultant Audit 4,740 4,740 4,740.00 2,370.00 2,370.00 4,740.00

43060_021 Contract Services General Manager 300,000 300,000 210,526.88 105,263.44 105,263.44 210,526.88

43105_003 Interdepartmental Admin Support 25,000 25,000

Clerical 12,500 12,500 5,469.08 2,734.54 2,734.54 5,469.08

Financial/Accounting 12,500 12,500 11,671.23 5,835.62 5,835.61 11,671.23

44001_000 Supplies 500 (180) 320 36.67 18.34 18.33 36.67

44035 Photocopies 500 500 0.00 0.00 0.00

44040_000 Postage 500 500 0.00 0.00 0.00

47010 Bank Charges 750 750 0.00 0.00 0.00

47040_000 Dues 4,000 180 4,180 4,180.00 2,090.00 2,090.00 4,180.00

47095_000 Training 1,000 1,000 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Total Expenditures 61,217,698 (454,900) 60,762,798 41,089,527.29 13,044,459.74 27,398,149.50 646,918.05 41,089,527.29

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (2,375,002) 0 (2,375,002) 6,224,446.15 2,341,368.99 3,576,821.82 306,255.34 6,224,446.15

0.00

EXHIBIT A

3B2



Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
Project to Date (updated as of 10-13-2021) Project to Date

Total Since Actuals Thru Actuals For 

City of Ceres City of Turlock TID Dec 2015 6/30/2020 2020-21 Total

Agency Contributions

Received from Agencies - 2015-16 379,561.50 347,487.50 727,049.00 727,049.00 727,049.00

Received from Agencies - 2016-17 1,138,659.60 1,175,000.00 106,958.25 2,420,617.85 2,420,617.85 2,420,617.85

Received from Agencies - 2017-18 1,055,176.00 1,160,500.00 114,507.52 2,330,183.52 2,330,183.52 2,330,183.52

Received from Agencies - 2018-19 2,872,300.00 4,072,700.00 1,057,400.00 8,002,400.00 8,002,400.00 8,002,400.00

Received from Agencies - 2019-20 2,013,600.00 3,598,100.00 594,500.00 6,206,200.00 6,206,200.00 6,206,200.00

Received from Agencies - 2020-21 15,375,000.00 30,957,500.00 952,350.00 47,284,850.00 47,284,850.00 47,284,850.00

Interest Income 53,747.59 50,941.12 823.39 105,512.10 76,388.66 29,123.44 105,512.10

0.00 0.00

Total Agency Contributions 22,888,044.69 41,362,228.62 2,826,539.16 67,076,812.47 19,762,839.03 47,313,973.44 67,076,812.47

Expenditures

Pre-Treatment Plant Construction Project Expenses (950-52-553)

Government Relations (74,723.55) (74,723.55) 0.00 (149,447.10) (149,447.10) 0.00 (149,447.10)

Environmental Services (Phase I) (250,664.65) (250,664.65) (32,520.11) (533,849.41) (533,849.41) 0.00 (533,849.41)

Project Management Services (3,339,775.74) (3,482,341.11) (169,068.88) (6,991,185.73) (6,899,667.52) (91,518.21) (6,991,185.73)

Special Legal Exenses (215,670.55) (215,670.56) (5,302.43) (436,643.54) (428,619.84) (8,023.70) (436,643.54)

Wet Well Design (West Yost) (166,904.88) (206,872.74) (93,444.40) (467,222.02) (467,222.02) 0.00 (467,222.02)

Fees to Stan County-CEQA related to wet well (1,136.63) (1,136.62) 0.00 (2,273.25) (2,273.25) (2,273.25)

Permitting (17,768.08) (17,768.09) 0.00 (35,536.17) (35,260.17) (276.00) (35,536.17)

Permitting - Water Rights Acquisition (36,240.88) (36,240.89) 0.00 (72,481.77) (72,481.77) 0.00 (72,481.77)

Water Shed Survey (40,660.67) (40,660.67) 0.00 (81,321.34) (81,321.34) 0.00 (81,321.34)

Property Acquisition - facility site (479,756.19) (959,656.32) 0.00 (1,439,412.51) 0.00 (1,439,412.51) (1,439,412.51)

Property Acquisition - infiltration gallery (246,925.80) (493,925.69) 0.00 (740,851.49) 0.00 (740,851.49) (740,851.49)

Property Acquisition - Geer Road easement (92,200.00) 0.00 0.00 (92,200.00) 0.00 (92,200.00) (92,200.00)

Property Acquisition - delivery facilities (7,393.88) (7,393.88) 0.00 (14,787.76) 0.00 (14,787.76) (14,787.76)

Wet Well Contruction

Construction Contract (1,888,242.96) (3,769,413.84) (1,414,414.20) (7,072,071.00) (7,072,071.00) 0.00 (7,072,071.00)

Construction Management (145,962.80) (291,378.94) (109,335.45) (546,677.19) (546,677.19) 0.00 (546,677.19)

Environmental (Phase II) (103,524.75) (155,193.07) (47,798.97) (306,516.79) (306,516.79) 0.00 (306,516.79)

Contractor Financial Evaluation (18,944.30) (18,944.30) (761.40) (38,650.00) (38,650.00) 0.00 (38,650.00)

TID - electrical service (1,507.99) (3,016.44) 0.00 (4,524.43) (1,234.80) (3,289.63) (4,524.43)

Treatment Plant Construction - SRF funding eligible (950-53-553)

Contract Services - Program Mgmt Services (369,181.11) (519,242.76) (13,703.82) (902,127.69) 0.00 (902,127.69) (902,127.69)

Special Legal Counsel (17,885.82) (17,885.82) (718.86) (36,490.50) 0.00 (36,490.50) (36,490.50)

Environmental Services (52,001.07) (52,677.22) (17,717.72) (122,396.01) 0.00 (122,396.01) (122,396.01)

Permitting (8,605.81) (46,785.44) 0.00 (55,391.25) 0.00 (55,391.25) (55,391.25)

Permitting - Environmental Mitigation (47,339.25) (94,660.75) (35,500.00) (177,500.00) 0.00 (177,500.00) (177,500.00)

Regional Trtmt Plant - Design/Build Contract (11,478,661.44) (24,881,686.52) (574,198.98) (36,934,546.94) 0.00 (36,934,546.94) (36,934,546.94)

Regional Trtmt Plant - Contract Management (75,190.27) (153,868.50) (5,032.97) (234,091.74) 0.00 (234,091.74) (234,091.74)

EXHIBIT B  (page 1  of  2)

3B2



Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
Project to Date (updated as of 10-13-2021) Project to Date

Total Since Actuals Thru Actuals For 

City of Ceres City of Turlock TID Dec 2015 6/30/2020 2020-21 Total

Administrative Support

Clerical Services (23,588.40) (23,588.40) 0.00 (47,176.80) (41,707.72) (5,469.08) (47,176.80)

Accounting Services (27,932.30) (27,932.28) 0.00 (55,864.58) (44,193.35) (11,671.23) (55,864.58)

Interim JPA attorney (22,662.50) (22,662.50) 0.00 (45,325.00) (45,325.00) (45,325.00)

Interim General Manager (121,991.80) (121,991.80) 0.00 (243,983.60) (243,983.60) (243,983.60)

General Manager (300,646.80) (300,646.80) 0.00 (601,293.60) (390,766.72) (210,526.88) (601,293.60)

External Audit (11,735.00) (11,735.00) 0.00 (23,470.00) (18,730.00) (4,740.00) (23,470.00)

Supplies and other Miscellaneous Expenses (8,014.53) (8,014.52) 0.00 (16,029.05) (11,812.38) (4,216.67) (16,029.05)

Total Expenditures (19,693,440.40) (36,308,379.67) (2,519,518.19) (58,521,338.26) (17,431,810.97) (41,089,527.29) (58,521,338.26)

Contributions over (under) Expenditures -

 project to date 3,194,604.29 5,053,848.95 307,020.97 8,555,474.21 2,331,028.06 6,224,446.15 8,555,474.21

EXHIBIT B  (page 2  of  2)

3B2



Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
For FY 2021-22    (Updated 10-13-2021)

Account Name

Original 

Budget Amendments

Amended 

Budget 

2021-22

Unaudited 

Actual 

2021-22 Ceres Turlock TID

Totals for 

2021-22

REVENUES

Interest Income 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

34910 Integrated Water Mgmt Grant 1,450,225 1,450,225

34911 Water Smart Grant 1,478,440 1,478,440

34900_001 Agency Contrinbution - City of Turlock 303,100 303,100 18,325,000.00 18,325,000.00 18,325,000.00

34900_002 Agency Contribution - City of Ceres 371,520 371,520 9,250,000.00 9,250,000.00 9,250,000.00

34900_004 Agency Contrinbution - Turlock Irrigation District 1,000 1,000 550,000.00 550,000.00 550,000.00

35440 SRF Funding Proceeds 112,836,795 112,836,795 0.00 0.00

   Total Revenues 116,441,080 0 116,441,080 28,125,000.00 9,250,000.00 18,325,000.00 550,000.00 28,125,000.00

EXPENSES

Pre-Treatment Plant Construction Project Expenses (950-53-552)

43060_012 Contact Services Program Mgmt 277,900 277,900 20,390.28 9,802.64 10,562.89 24.75 20,390.28

43195 Special Legal Counsel 25,000 25,000 2,557.50 1,278.75 1,278.75 2,557.50

43332 Permitting 7,000 7,000 0.00 0.00 0.00

43332_002 Permitting - Water Rights Acquisition 5,000 5,000 0.00

45002_000 TID - electrical service 720 720 180.63 60.20 120.43 0.00 180.63

51001 Property Acquisition - facility site 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

51001 Property Acquisition - infiltration gallery 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

51001 Property Acquisition - Geer Road easement 0 0.00 0.00

51001 Property Acquisition - delivery facilities 0 0.00 0.00 0.00

Treatment Plant Construction - SRF funding eligible (950-53-553)

43060_012 Contract Services - Program Mgmt Services 1,863,480 1,863,480 174,205.30 66,566.24 104,837.39 2,801.67 174,205.30

43195 Special Legal Counsel 50,000 50,000 7,922.75 3,883.34 3,883.34 156.07 7,922.75

43329 Environmental Services 184,940 184,940 20,140.96 8,455.43 8,455.43 3,230.10 20,140.96

43332 Permitting 133,000 133,000 5,596.00 5,596.00 5,596.00

51802_001 Regional Trtmt Plant - Design/Build Contract 113,006,185 113,006,185 11,380,524.62 2,299,017.95 8,987,736.99 93,769.68 11,380,524.62

51802_002 Regional Trtmt Plant - Contract Management 527,855 527,855 32,530.00 10,448.64 21,381.97 699.39 32,530.00

Administrative Expenses (950-53-552)

43055_002 Consultant Audit 10,000 10,000 0.00 0.00 0.00

43060_021 Contract Services General Manager 300,000 300,000 38,151.95 19,075.98 19,075.97 38,151.95

43105_003 Interdepartmental Admin Support 0

Clerical 17,500 17,500 0.00 0.00 0.00

Financial/Accounting 25,000 25,000 0.00 0.00 0.00

44001_000 Supplies 300 300 0.00 0.00 0.00

44035 Photocopies 500 500 0.00 0.00 0.00

44040_000 Postage 500 500 0.00 0.00 0.00

47010 Bank Charges 700 700 0.00 0.00 0.00

47040_000 Dues 4,500 4,500 0.00 0.00 0.00

47095_000 Training 1,000 1,000 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Total Expenditures 116,441,080 0 116,441,080 11,682,199.99 2,418,589.17 9,162,929.16 100,681.66 11,682,199.99

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 0 0 0 16,442,800.01 6,831,410.83 9,162,070.84 449,318.34 16,442,800.01

0.00

EXHIBIT C

3B2



Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
Project to Date (updated as of 10-13-2021) Project to Date

Total Since Actuals Thru Actuals For 

City of Ceres City of Turlock TID Dec 2015 6/30/2021 2021-22 Total

Agency Contributions

Received from Agencies - through 6-30-2021 22,834,297.10 41,311,287.50 2,825,715.77 66,971,300.37 66,971,300.37 66,971,300.37

Received from Agencies - 2021-22 9,250,000.00 18,325,000.00 550,000.00 28,125,000.00 28,125,000.00 28,125,000.00

Interest Income 53,747.59 50,941.12 823.39 105,512.10 105,512.10 105,512.10

0.00 0.00

Total Agency Contributions 32,138,044.69 59,687,228.62 3,376,539.16 95,201,812.47 67,076,812.47 28,125,000.00 95,201,812.47

Expenditures

Pre-Treatment Plant Construction Project Expenses (950-52-553)

Government Relations (74,723.55) (74,723.55) 0.00 (149,447.10) (149,447.10) 0.00 (149,447.10)

Environmental Services (Phase I) (250,664.65) (250,664.65) (32,520.11) (533,849.41) (533,849.41) 0.00 (533,849.41)

Project Management Services (3,349,578.38) (3,492,904.00) (169,093.63) (7,011,576.01) (6,991,185.73) (20,390.28) (7,011,576.01)

Special Legal Exenses (216,949.30) (216,949.31) (5,302.43) (439,201.04) (436,643.54) (2,557.50) (439,201.04)

Wet Well Design (West Yost) (166,904.88) (206,872.74) (93,444.40) (467,222.02) (467,222.02) 0.00 (467,222.02)

Fees to Stan County-CEQA related to wet well (1,136.63) (1,136.62) 0.00 (2,273.25) (2,273.25) (2,273.25)

Permitting (17,768.08) (17,768.09) 0.00 (35,536.17) (35,536.17) 0.00 (35,536.17)

Permitting - Water Rights Acquisition (36,240.88) (36,240.89) 0.00 (72,481.77) (72,481.77) 0.00 (72,481.77)

Water Shed Survey (40,660.67) (40,660.67) 0.00 (81,321.34) (81,321.34) 0.00 (81,321.34)

Property Acquisition - facility site (479,756.19) (959,656.32) 0.00 (1,439,412.51) (1,439,412.51) 0.00 (1,439,412.51)

Property Acquisition - infiltration gallery (246,925.80) (493,925.69) 0.00 (740,851.49) (740,851.49) 0.00 (740,851.49)

Property Acquisition - Geer Road easement (92,260.20) (120.43) 0.00 (92,380.63) (92,200.00) (180.63) (92,380.63)

Property Acquisition - delivery facilities (7,393.88) (7,393.88) 0.00 (14,787.76) (14,787.76) 0.00 (14,787.76)

Wet Well Contruction

Construction Contract (1,888,242.96) (3,769,413.84) (1,414,414.20) (7,072,071.00) (7,072,071.00) 0.00 (7,072,071.00)

Construction Management (145,962.80) (291,378.94) (109,335.45) (546,677.19) (546,677.19) 0.00 (546,677.19)

Environmental (Phase II) (103,524.75) (155,193.07) (47,798.97) (306,516.79) (306,516.79) 0.00 (306,516.79)

Contractor Financial Evaluation (18,944.30) (18,944.30) (761.40) (38,650.00) (38,650.00) 0.00 (38,650.00)

TID - electrical service (1,507.99) (3,016.44) 0.00 (4,524.43) (4,524.43) 0.00 (4,524.43)

Treatment Plant Construction - SRF funding eligible (950-53-553)

Contract Services - Program Mgmt Services (435,747.35) (624,080.15) (16,505.49) (1,076,332.99) (902,127.69) (174,205.30) (1,076,332.99)

Special Legal Counsel (21,769.16) (21,769.16) (874.93) (44,413.25) (36,490.50) (7,922.75) (44,413.25)

Environmental Services (60,456.50) (61,132.65) (20,947.82) (142,536.97) (122,396.01) (20,140.96) (142,536.97)

Permitting (8,605.81) (52,381.44) 0.00 (60,987.25) (55,391.25) (5,596.00) (60,987.25)

Permitting - Environmental Mitigation (47,339.25) (94,660.75) (35,500.00) (177,500.00) (177,500.00) 0.00 (177,500.00)

Regional Trtmt Plant - Design/Build Contract (13,777,679.39) (33,869,423.51) (667,968.66) (48,315,071.56) (36,934,546.94) (11,380,524.62) (48,315,071.56)

Regional Trtmt Plant - Contract Management (85,638.91) (175,250.47) (5,732.36) (266,621.74) (234,091.74) (32,530.00) (266,621.74)

EXHIBIT D  (page 1  of  2)

3B2



Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
Project to Date (updated as of 10-13-2021) Project to Date

Total Since Actuals Thru Actuals For 

City of Ceres City of Turlock TID Dec 2015 6/30/2021 2021-22 Total

Administrative Support

Clerical Services (23,588.40) (23,588.40) 0.00 (47,176.80) (47,176.80) 0.00 (47,176.80)

Accounting Services (27,932.30) (27,932.28) 0.00 (55,864.58) (55,864.58) 0.00 (55,864.58)

Interim JPA attorney (22,662.50) (22,662.50) 0.00 (45,325.00) (45,325.00) 0.00 (45,325.00)

Interim General Manager (121,991.80) (121,991.80) 0.00 (243,983.60) (243,983.60) 0.00 (243,983.60)

General Manager (319,722.78) (319,722.77) 0.00 (639,445.55) (601,293.60) (38,151.95) (639,445.55)

External Audit (11,735.00) (11,735.00) 0.00 (23,470.00) (23,470.00) 0.00 (23,470.00)

Supplies and other Miscellaneous Expenses (8,014.53) (8,014.52) 0.00 (16,029.05) (16,029.05) 0.00 (16,029.05)

Total Expenditures (22,112,029.57) (45,471,308.83) (2,620,199.85) (70,203,538.25) (58,521,338.26) (11,682,199.99) (70,203,538.25)

Contributions over (under) Expenditures -

 project to date 10,026,015.12 14,215,919.79 756,339.31 24,998,274.22 8,555,474.21 16,442,800.01 24,998,274.22

EXHIBIT D  (page 2  of  2)

3B2



 
 
 
1. A. CALL TO ORDER:  Chair Bublak called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m. 

 PRESENT: Chair Bublak, Vice Chair Lopez, Director Franco, Director Condit 
  ABSENT: None 
 

B. SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
 
C. ROLL CALL 

 
This item was heard out of order 
4. DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND DISQUALIFICATIONS: 
 

Director Franco Director Condit Vice Chair Lopez Chair Bublak 
No No No No 

 
2. RECOGNITION, APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS & PRESENTATIONS:  None 

 
3. A. SPECIAL BRIEFINGS:  None 

 
B. STAFF UPDATES: 

 
1. General Manager Robert Granberg provided a presentation on design-build project 

activities, design-build contract status, environmental clearance/permitting, other 
activities, funding/financing update, public outreach, and shared project photos.   

 
The Board and staff discussed this item, including taking a tour of the plant for the next 
meeting date.  
 

2. Finance Director Marie Lorenzi provided an update on financial activity for year-to-date 
Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2021, and the summary of financial activity as of August 13, 
2021. Revenue and expenses were reviewed. 

 
C. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

 
Chair Bublak opened public participation. 

 
The following members of the public spoke: None 

 
Chair Bublak closed public participation. 

 
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

Action: Motion by Director Condit, seconded by Director Franco, approving the minutes of the 
Regular Meeting of June 17, 2021.  Motion carried 4/0 by the following vote: 

 
Director Franco Director Condit Vice Chair Lopez Chair Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 DRAFT Minutes 5A 
Regular Board Meeting 

August 19, 2021 



  SRWA Regular Board Meeting 
D R A F T 5A  Minutes of August 19, 2021 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None 

 
7. SCHEDULED MATTERS: 

 
A. General Manager Granberg recommended that the Board adopt the construction installment 

sale agreement (No. SWRCB0000000000D2002047) with State Water Resource Control Board 
for Funding Regional Surface Water Supply Project Under Drinking Water State Revolving Loan 
Fund and authorizing related actions. Granberg presented the SRF schedule of activities from 
December 2016-January 1, 2053.  Funding term highlighted 1.2% interest over 30-year loan 
term with annual payments due January each year. Interest only payments due annually until 
one year after construction. Granberg gave complete date of December 31, 2023 and 
presented on the financing cost savings of over $100 million over the life of the loan when 
compared to municipal bond financing.  
 
Director Condit spoke on the grant money available the Budget Act granted. Granberg 
indicated that it is something that is being pursued and it would take to apply. 
 
Chair Bublak asked if the SRF is a compilation of necessities. Granberg responded that it is a 
total borrowing of the project and payments will come through an annual reconciliation and 
at the end of the project.  

 
Board and staff discussed this item, including proposed budget for the cities’ allocation, 
General Manager contract budget.   

 
Chair Bublak opened public participation. No one spoke. Chair Bublak closed public 
participation.  
 
Action: Resolution 2021-003 Motion by Director Franco, seconded by Director Condit,  
 Adopting the construction installment sale agreement (No. 

SWRCB0000000000D2002047) with State Water Resource Control Board for 
Funding Regional Surface Water Supply Project Under Drinking Water State 
Revolving Loan Fund and authorizing related actions 

  
 Motion carried 4/0 by the following vote: 

 
Director Franco Director Condit Vice Chair Lopez Chair Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Yes 
 

B. General Manager Robert Granberg recommended that the Board direct the General Manager 
to Prepare a Staffing plan and Wage and Benefit Package for Assuming Water Treatment Plant 
Operations and return to board with a staffing plan for adoption. 
 
Granberg presented on operations and maintenance, plant operation support functions, and 
options to run the plant. Option 1 SRWA as an employer was presented with organizational 
flexibility as a pro and administrative burden as a con. Option 2 as JPA member agency 
providing SRWA with O&M staffing and support. Contract with City of Turlock to provide staff 
support, some operations and maintenance, finance, HR and procurement, or for discussion. 
A checklist with SRWA operations was listed as follows: Employee-related tasks, Job 
Descriptions, Salaries and Benefits, Payroll, Workers Compensation, Occupational health, Hire 
staff, First day paperwork, posters, and training. SRWA operations options cost comparison 



  SRWA Regular Board Meeting 
D R A F T 5A  Minutes of August 19, 2021 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 

was shown with a full time GM, Plant manager, City of Turlock staffing and contract 
operations.  

 
Board and staff discussed this item, including contract with local government agencies like 
City of Modesto instead of Turlock and wage scales compared with Modesto Irrigation district.  
 
Chair Bublak directed General Manager to show on how resource sharing would look like with 
hybrid work and what the options are available.  
 
Vice Chair Lopez directed General manager to look into employment arrangements. 

 
Chair Bublak opened public participation. No one spoke. Chair Bublak closed public 
participation.  
 

 
8. MATTERS TOO LATE FOR THE AGENDA:  None 

 
9. BOARD ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION:  None 

 
10. BOARD COMMENTS:  None 
 
11. NEXT MEETING DATE:  September 16, 2021, Regular meeting 
 
12. CLOSED SESSION:  None 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT:  Chair Bublak adjourned the meeting at 4:11 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 

 
DRAFT 

 _______________________________ 
 Angelica Gonsalves, Board Secretary 



 
 
From:  West Yost Program Management Team 

Prepared by: Monique Day, West Yost 

 
1. ACTION RECOMMENDED: 

 
Resolution: Authorize Submittal of a Proposition 50 Funding Program 

Application to the California Department of Water Resources for 
the UV/Ozone Treatment System at the Water Treatment Plant 

 
2. DISCUSSION OF ISSUE: 

The Stanislaus Regional Water Authority (SRWA) is continually looking for 
alternative funding sources, mainly grants, to fund construction of the Regional 
Surface Water Supply Project (Project). The Proposition 50, Water Security, Clean 
Drinking Water, Coastal and Beach Protection Act of 2002, Chapter 6C funding 
program offered by the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) provides 
grants for projects using UV or ozone disinfection of drinking water. Interested 
applicants must first contact DWR and provide preliminary project information to 
be invited to submit a project application to this competitive funding program. 
West Yost subconsultant, Sylvir Consulting, Inc., contacted the staff at DWR on 
behalf of the SRWA to advocate for the Project and received approval to move 
forward with the submission of a grant application. A resolution authorizing the 
submission of the application must be adopted by the Board for the project to be 
considered for funding. If Proposition 50 funds are awarded, another Board 
resolution will be required to accept the funds and execute the funding 
agreement. 
 
3. FISCAL IMPACT/BUDGET AMENDMENT: 

The Proposition 50 funding request is for $3,988,976. If awarded, this funding will 
reduce the amount borrowed through the State Revolving Fund loan. 
 
4. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Recommends approval. 
 
5. ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: N/A 

 
6. ALTERNATIVES: 

The Board could elect to not adopt the resolution and therefore, not authorize the 
submittal of the Proposition 50 grant application. 

 

Item 7A 
Board Synopsis 

October 20, 2021 



{00176214.1} -1- 

 
 

 
BEFORE THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE STANISLAUS REGIONAL 

WATER AUTHORITY 
 

 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE } 
STANISLAUS REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY} 
GENERAL MANAGER TO APPLY FOR A         } RESOLUTION NO. 2021-___ 
PROPOSITION 50 FUNDING PROGRAM  } 
GRANT FOR THE REGIONAL SURFACE  } 
WATER SUPPLY PROJECT } 
 

WHEREAS, the Stanislaus Regional Water Authority (“Authority”) has the 
authority to construct, operate, and maintain the Authority’s Regional Surface Water 
Supply Project (“Project”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to enhance the provision and protection of the 
drinking water supplied to the consumers of the Authority, therefore; 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Board of the Authority that, pursuant and 
subject to all of the terms and provisions of the Water Security, Clean Drinking Water, 
Coastal and Beach Protection Act of 2002 (Proposition 50) and all amendments 
thereto, application be made to the State of California for funding; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager of the Authority is hereby 
authorized and directed to cause the necessary data to be prepared, investigations to 
be performed and application to be signed and filed with the State of California. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a special meeting of the Governing Board of the 

Stanislaus Regional Water Authority on October 20, 2021, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:  
 NOES:  

 NOT PARTICIPATING:  
 ABSENT:  

ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Angelica Gonsalves, Board Secretary 

7A 



 
  

 
From: Marie Lorenzi, Finance Director 

 
Prepared by: Marie Lorenzi, Finance Director 

 
1. ACTION RECOMMENDED: 
 

Motion: Awarding a contract for professional auditing services to Maze & 
Associates Accountancy Corporation for audits of fiscal year 2020-
21 and 2021-22 financial information for amounts not to exceed 
$8,849 and $8,973 respectively 

 
2. DISCUSSION OF ISSUE: 
 

The SRWA’s contract with its current external audit firm ended with the 
completion of the 2019-20 fiscal year financial statements audit.  Staff issued a 
Request for Proposal (RFP) for external audit services for the 2020-21 and 2021-
22 fiscal year financial statement audit.  While two firms indicated interest 
during the RFP response period, only one firm, Maze and Associates Accountancy 
Corporation submitted a response.  Their response and cost proposal are 
attached. 
 
Maze and Associates has audited the SRWA financial information since the 2015-
16 fiscal year.  They also perform the external audit of the City of Turlock 
financial statements.  Staff only requested a two-year proposal putting the 
SRWA’s contract on the same contract schedule as the City of Turlock.  The SRWA 
uses the City of Turlock financial accounting systems; therefore, it makes 
logistical and economic sense that the SRWA’s audit firm is the same as the City 
of Turlock.   

 
The audit process is outlined in the attached RFP response and is consistent with 
what would be expected for a financial statement audit.  The cost proposal is 
broken into two parts.  One is for the normal audit services and related reports 
and the other is for a Single Audit.  The Single Audit is only necessary when the 
SRWA receives federal money.  In addition to any federal grants that the SRWA 
has for this project, the proceeds of the SRF loan may be funded with federal 
monies.  Staff will not know if the funds received from an SRF loan draw are from 
a federal or non-federal source until the State disburses the funds.  Due to this 
uncertainty, it is not possible to state at this time whether a Single Audit will be 
needed for fiscal year 2020-21. 

  

Item 7B 
Board Synopsis 

October 20, 2021 



Agenda Synopsis 
10/20/2021 

Page 2 
 
 

3. FISCAL IMPACT / BUDGET AMENDMENT:  
 

The following summarizes the information in the cost proposal: 
 
      FYE 2020-21  FYE 2021-22 
 
SRWA Audit and Related Reports $4,825 $4,893 
Single Audit and Related Reports $4,024 $4,080 
 
 Total $8,849 $8,973 
 
The audit for the 2020-21 financial information is performed during fiscal year 
2021-22 and the audit for the 2021-22 financial information the following year. 
 
The fee for the audit represents the cost to perform the financial statement 
audit and prepare the related financial statements, Memorandum on Internal 
Controls,  and any other auditor required communications with management. 
 
The fee for the Single Audit assumes that there is only one major program that 
needs to be tested.  Funds received from a single federal source are considered 
a program.  For example, if the SRWA received federal funds from two different 
federal sources (i.e. the Department of the Interior and the Department of 
Energy), these would each be considered a “program”.  The Single Audit process 
requires the auditors to test a certain percentage of total federal dollars as well 
as a certain number of programs.   The actual calculation of which program(s) 
gets tested is dependent on the level of federal dollars for each program.  At 
this time, based on the funding the SRWA Staff anticipates receiving, Staff is 
assuming only one program will be considered a major program for testing 
purposes for each year of this contract. 
 
The 2021-22 budget appropriated $10,000 for audit services so no budget 
adjustment is currently needed.  Should the auditors determine that the SRWA 
has more than one major program requiring Single Audit testing for 2020-21, 
Staff will bring a budget augmentation request to the Board at that time.  
 

4. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS:  
 

Recommends approval. 
 
5. ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:  
 
 N/A 
 
6. ALTERNATIVES:  
 

The Board may choose not to award this contract.  Staff does not recommend 
this alternative as the audit is required by the SRWA’s governing documents. 



-1- 

 
 AGREEMENT FOR SPECIAL SERVICES 

between 
Stanislaus Regional Water Authority 

and 
Maze & Associates Accountancy Corporation 

for 
 Professional Auditing Services 

 
  
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made this _________________, 20__, by and between Stanislaus 
Regional Water Authority, a joint powers authority ("SRWA"), and Maze & Associates 
Accountancy Corporation, a Professional corporation ("CONSULTANT"), who agree as follows: 
 
1. SCOPE OF WORK: CONSULTANT shall perform the work and render the special services 
described in the attached Exhibit A (the “Services”). CONSULTANT shall provide all labor, 
services, equipment, tools, material and supplies required or necessary to properly, competently 
and completely perform the Services. CONSULTANT shall determine the method, details and 
means of doing the Services. It is uncertain at the time of Agreement approval whether SRWA 
will need to complete the Single Audit and Related Reports portion of the Services for either or 
both fiscal years. CONSULTANT therefore shall perform that portion of the Services only if and 
as directed to do so in writing from SRWA. 

 
2. COMPENSATION: SRWA shall pay CONSULTANT in accordance with Exhibit B as full 
remuneration for performing all Services and furnishing all staffing and materials and for 
performance by CONSULTANT of all of its duties and obligations under this Agreement. In no 
event shall the total payment to CONSULTANT under this Agreement exceed $17,822.00. 
CONSULTANT shall be paid in the manner and at the times set forth below: 
 
 (a) Invoices: CONSULTANT shall submit dated invoices to SRWA on a monthly basis 
specifying the date, location and service rendered, and by whom, and the fee or charge. 
 

(b) Payment: 
  

(1) All payments by SRWA shall be made in arrears, after satisfactory service, as 
determined and approved by SRWA, has been provided. Payment shall be made 
by SRWA no more than 30 days from the SRWA’s receipt of invoice, subject to 
availability of funds. SRWA reserves the right to only pay for such services 
rendered to the satisfaction of SRWA. 

 
(2) If SRWA disputes any item on an invoice for a reasonable cause, which 
includes, but is not limited to, unsatisfactory service, SRWA may deduct that 
disputed item from the payment, but shall not delay payment of the undisputed 
portions. The amounts and reasons for such deletions shall be documented to 
CONSULTANT within 15 working days after receipt of invoice by SRWA.  
 
(3) If dispute is settled, payment shall be by check payable to and mailed to 
CONSULTANT within five working days of dispute settlement. 
 

5. INSURANCE: CONSULTANT shall not commence Services under this Agreement until 

7B

21October 20



-2- 

CONSULTANT has obtained SRWA’s approval regarding all insurance requirements, forms, 
endorsements, amounts, and carrier ratings, nor shall CONSULTANT allow any subcontractor 
to commence work or services on a subcontract until all similar insurance required of the 
subcontractor shall have been so obtained and approved. CONSULTANT shall procure and 
maintain for the duration of this Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or 
damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work or 
services hereunder by CONSULTANT, its agents, representatives, employees or 
subcontractors. Failure to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal 
constitutes a material breach of contract. 
 

(a) Minimum Scope of Insurance: Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 
 

(1) Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence 
Form CG 00 01) with an additional insured endorsement (form CG 20 10 for ongoing 
operations and 20 37 for products/completed operations), to be approved by the SRWA.  

 
(2) Insurance Services Office Form CA 00 01 covering Automobile Liability, Code 

1 (any auto).  
 
(3) Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California and 

Employer’s Liability Insurance. 
 
(4) Errors and Omissions/Professional Liability Insurance.  

 
(b) Minimum Limits of Insurance: CONSULTANT shall maintain limits no less than: 

 
(1) General Liability (including operations, products and completed operations): 

$2,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. If 
Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is 
used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location or 
the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. 

 
(2) Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property 

damage. 
 
(3) Workers’ Compensation: as statutorily required by the State of California. 

Employer’s Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 
 
(4) Errors and Omissions/Professional Liability: $1,000,000 per claim. 

 
(c) Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions: Upon request of SRWA, any deductibles or 

self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by SRWA. At the option of SRWA, 
either: (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as 
respects SRWA, its elective and appointive boards, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers; 
or (2) CONSULTANT shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to SRWA guaranteeing 
payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses. 
 

(d) Other Insurance Provisions: The commercial general liability policy shall contain, or 
be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

 
(1) SRWA, its elective and appointive boards, officers, agents, employees, and 
volunteers are to be covered as additional insured with respect to liability arising 
out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of CONSULTANT, including 



-3- 

materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such work or 
operations, which coverage shall be maintained in effect for at least three years 
following the completion of the work specified in the contract. General liability 
coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to CONSULTANT’s 
insurance (at least as broad as CG 20 10 for ongoing operations and CG 20 37 
for products/completed operations), or as a separate Owners and Contractors 
Protective Liability policy providing both ongoing operations and completed 
operations coverage. 
 
(2) For any claims related to this project, CONSULTANT’s insurance coverage 
shall be primary insurance as respects SRWA and any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by SRWA shall be excess of CONSULTANT’s insurance 
and shall not contribute with it. 
 
(3) In the event of cancellation, non-renewal, or material change that reduces or 
restricts the insurance coverage afforded to SRWA under this Agreement, the 
insurer, broker/producer, or CONSULTANT shall provide SRWA with 30 days’ 
prior written notice of such cancellation, non-renewal, or material change. 
 
(4) Coverage shall not extend to any indemnity coverage for the active 
negligence of the additional insured in any case where an agreement to 
indemnify the additional insured would be invalid under Civil Code Section 
2782(b). 

 
(e) Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. 

Best’s rating of no less than A:VII. 
 
(f) Verification of Coverage: CONSULTANT shall furnish SRWA with original certificates 

and amendatory endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage 
required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by 
SRWA before work commences. However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to the 
work beginning shall not waive CONSULTANT’S obligation to provide them. SRWA reserves 
the right, at any time, to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies and 
endorsements. 

 
(g) Waiver of Subrogation: With the exception of professional liability, CONSULTANT 

hereby agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of CONSULTANT may acquire from 
CONSULTANT by virtue of the payment of any loss. The commercial general liability policy and 
workers’ compensation policy shall be endorsed to contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of 
SRWA for all work performed by CONSULTANT, its agents, employees, independent 
contractors and subcontractors. CONSULTANT agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be 
necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation.  

 
(h) Subcontractors: CONSULTANT shall include all subcontractors as insured under its 

policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All 
insurance coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein. 
 
6. INDEMNIFICATION: CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless SRWA and 
its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all claim, demand, 
cost, or liability that arises out of, pertains to, or relates to, the negligence, recklessness, or 
willful misconduct of CONSULTANT or its employees or agents in the performance of services 
under this contract, but this indemnity does not apply to liability for damages arising from the 
sole negligence, active negligence, or willful misconduct of SRWA.  



-4- 

7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP:  
 

(a) All acts of CONSULTANT, its agents, officers, and employees and all others acting 
on behalf of CONSULTANT relating to the performance of this Agreement, shall be performed 
as an independent contractor and not as agents, officers, or employees of SRWA.  
CONSULTANT, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on 
behalf of SRWA. CONSULTANT has no authority or responsibility to exercise any rights or 
power vested in the SRWA. No agent, officer, or employee of the SRWA is to be considered an 
employee or agent of CONSULTANT. It is understood by both CONSULTANT and SRWA that 
this Agreement shall not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an 
employer-employee relationship or a joint venture. 
 

(b) CONSULTANT shall determine the method, details and means of performing the 
work and services to be provided by CONSULTANT under this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall 
be responsible to SRWA only for the requirements and results specified in this Agreement, and, 
except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to SRWA's control with 
respect to the physical action or activities of the CONSULTANT in fulfillment of this Agreement. 
CONSULTANT has control over the manner and means of performing the services under this 
Agreement. CONSULTANT is permitted to provide services to others during the same period 
service is provided to SRWA under this Agreement. If necessary, CONSULTANT has the 
responsibility for employing other persons or firms to assist CONSULTANT in fulfilling the terms 
and obligations under this Agreement. 
 

(c) As an independent contractor, CONSULTANT shall indemnify and hold SRWA 
harmless from any and all claims that may be made against SRWA based upon any contention 
by any third party that an employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this Agreement. 
CONSULTANT shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, indemnify SRWA, and its officers, 
employees, volunteers and agents from and against any and all liability, penalties, expenses 
and costs resulting from any adverse determination by the federal Internal Revenue Service, 
California Franchise Tax Board, other federal or state agency, or court concerning 
CONSULTANT’s independent contractor status or employment-related liability. 
 
8. TERM; TERMINATION BY SRWA: This Agreement shall become effective   , 2021 
and end upon completion of the Services for fiscal year 2021-22. However, SRWA may 
terminate this Agreement at any time without cause or legal excuse by providing 30-days’ 
written notice to CONSULTANT.  
 
9. TERMINATION BY CONSULTANT: Should SRWA materially breach any of its obligations 
under this Agreement, CONSULTANT may initiate termination of this Agreement by providing 
30-days’ written notice to SRWA. For the purposes of this section, material breach of this 
Agreement shall include the failure to timely pay CONSULTANT in accordance with the 
payment provisions above. If SRWA does not remedy the breach within the 30-day period after 
CONSULTANT notifies SRWA, then the Agreement will terminate at the end of the 30-day 
period. 

 
10. POST-TERMINATION. In the event of termination under section 8 or 9, CONSULTANT 
shall cease all its Services as of the termination date and shall see to it that its employees, 
subcontractors and agents are notified of such termination and cease their work. 
CONSULTANT shall be fairly compensated for all Services performed to the date of termination 
as calculated by SRWA based on the above fee and payment provisions. Compensation under 
this subsection shall not include any termination-related expenses, cancellation or 
demobilization charges, or lost profit associated with the expected completion of the Services or 
other such similar payments relating to CONSULTANT’s claimed benefit of the bargain. If 



-5- 

SRWA so requests, and at SRWA's cost, CONSULTANT shall provide sufficient oral or written 
status reports to make SRWA reasonably aware of the status of CONSULTANT'S work on the 
Services. Further, if SRWA so requests, and at SRWA's cost, CONSULTANT shall deliver to 
SRWA any work products whether in draft or final form which have been produced to date. 
 
11. CONFORMANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE LAW:  CONSULTANT shall perform the 
Services in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations, 
including any applicable federal or state safety-related statutes, regulations, and safety orders. 
CONSULTANT shall possess, maintain and comply with all federal, state and local permits, 
licenses and certificates that may be required for it to perform the Services. CONSULTANT 
shall comply with all federal, state and local air pollution control laws and regulations applicable 
to CONSULTANT and the Services (as required by California Code of Regulations title 13, 
section 2022.1). 
 
12. NONDISCRIMINATION: CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee or 
applicant for employment because of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, 
physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital status, sex, 
gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual orientation, or military and veteran 
status. CONSULTANT also shall comply with applicable federal and state statutes and 
regulations concerning civil rights and nondiscrimination.  
 
13. TIME: Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 
 
14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND MODIFICATION: The parties intend this writing to be the sole, 
final, complete, exclusive and integrated expression and statement of the terms of their contract 
concerning the Services. This Agreement supersedes all prior oral or written negotiations, 
representations, contracts or other documents that may be related to the Services, except those 
other documents (if any) that are expressly referenced in this Agreement. This Agreement may 
be amended only by a subsequent written contract approved and signed by both parties.  
 
15. PROFESSIONAL ABILITY OF CONSULTANT: CONSULTANT represents that it has all of 
the necessary professional capabilities and experience, as well as all tools, instrumentalities, 
facilities, training, personnel, and other resources necessary to competently perform the 
Services contemplated by this Agreement. CONSULTANT further represents that it will follow 
the best current, generally accepted, and professional practices to make findings, render 
opinions, prepare factual presentations, and provide professional advice and recommendations 
regarding this project. SRWA has relied upon CONSULTANT’s training, experience, skill, ability, 
knowledge and certification as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement. All Services 
performed by CONSULTANT shall be in accordance with applicable legal requirements and 
meet the standard of care and quality ordinarily to be expected of competent professionals in 
CONSULTANT’s field. 
 
16. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS: All works of authorship and every report, work paper, 
study, spreadsheet, worksheet, plan, computer model, computer software and any other 
document or thing prepared, developed or created by CONSULTANT under this Agreement and 
provided to SRWA (“Work Product”) shall be the property of SRWA, and SRWA shall have the 
rights to use, modify, reuse, reproduce, publish, display, broadcast and distribute the Work 
Product and to prepare derivative and additional documents or works based on the Work 
Product without further compensation to CONSULTANT or any other party. CONSULTANT may 
retain a copy of any Work Product and use, reproduce, publish, display, broadcast and 
distribute any Work Product and prepare derivative and additional documents or works based 
on any Work Product; provided, however, that CONSULTANT shall not provide any Work 
Product to any third party without SRWA’s prior written approval, unless compelled to do so by 



-6- 

legal process. If any Work Product is copyrightable, CONSULTANT may copyright the same, 
except that, as to any Work Product that is copyrighted by CONSULTANT, SRWA reserves a 
royalty-free, nonexclusive and irrevocable license to use, reuse, reproduce, publish, display, 
broadcast and distribute the Work Product and to prepare derivative and additional documents 
or works based on the Work Product. If SRWA reuses or modifies any Work Product for a use 
or purpose other than that intended by the scope of Services under this Agreement, then SRWA 
shall hold CONSULTANT harmless against all claims, damages, losses and expenses arising 
from such reuse or modification. For any Work Product provided to SRWA in paper format, upon 
request by SRWA at any time (including, but not limited to, at or after expiration or termination of 
this Agreement), CONSULTANT agrees to provide the Work Product to SRWA in a readable, 
transferable and usable electronic format generally acknowledged as being an industry-
standard format for information exchange between computers (e.g., Word file, Excel 
spreadsheet file). 
 
17. NEWS AND INFORMATION RELEASE: CONSULTANT shall not issue any news releases 
in connection with either the award of this Agreement, or any subsequent amendment of or 
efforts under this Agreement, without first obtaining review and approval of the news release 
from SRWA. 
 
18. INTEREST OF CONSULTANT: CONSULTANT warrants that it presently has no financial 
interest and shall not acquire any financial interest, direct or indirect, that would conflict in any 
manner or degree with the performance of the Services. CONSULTANT warrants that, in 
performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall not employ any person having any such 
financial interest. If so directed in writing by SRWA, CONSULTANT shall file a FPPC Form 700 
Statement of Economic Interests with SRWA at the start and end of the Services and annually 
during the term of the Agreement. 
 
19. AMENDMENTS: It may become desirable or necessary during the execution of this 
Agreement, for SRWA or CONSULTANT to modify the scope of services provided for under this 
Agreement or to otherwise amend the Agreement. Any change in the Agreement requires a 
written amendment approved and signed by both parties. Any Agreement amendment by 
SRWA requires approval by its Board of Directors. Until an amendment is so approved and 
signed, SRWA will not be responsible to pay any charges CONSULTANT may incur in 
performing such additional services, and CONSULTANT shall not be required to perform any 
such additional services. 
 
20. PARTIAL INVALIDITY: If any provision in this Agreement is held by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall nevertheless 
continue in full force and effect and be fully binding, provided that each party still receives the 
benefits of this Agreement.  
 
21. WAIVER: The waiver by any party to this Agreement of a breach of any provision hereof 
shall be in writing and shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any other or subsequent 
breach hereof unless specifically stated in writing. 
 
22. CONSULTANT RECORDS AND AUDIT: CONSULTANT shall keep and maintain all 
ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, work papers, reports, and 
other records and documents evidencing or relating to the Services and invoice preparation and 
support for a minimum period of five years (or for any longer period required by law) from the 
date of final payment to CONSULTANT under this Agreement, unless CONSULTANT is notified 
in writing by the SWRA of the need to extend the retention period. SRWA may inspect and audit 
such books and records, including source documents, to verify all charges, payments and 
reimbursable costs under this Agreement. In accordance with California Government Code 



-7- 

section 8546.7, the parties acknowledge that this Agreement, and performance and payments 
under it, are subject to examination and audit by the California State Auditor for three years 
following final payment under the Agreement. 
 
23. GOVERNING LAW: This Agreement shall be governed according to the laws of the State of 
California. 
 
24. ASSIGNMENT: This Agreement and all rights and obligations under it are personal to the 
parties. The Agreement may not be transferred, assigned, delegated or subcontracted in whole 
or in part, whether by assignment, subcontract, merger, operation of law or otherwise, by either 
party without the prior written consent of the other party. Any transfer, assignment, delegation, 
or subcontract in violation of this provision is null and void and grounds for the other party to 
terminate the Agreement. SRWA consents to CONSULTANT’s use of a subcontractor if that use 
is described in Exhibit A. 
 
25. NOTICE: Any notice, demand, invoice or other communication required or permitted to be 
given under this Agreement must be in writing and delivered either (a) in person, (b) by prepaid, 
first class U.S. mail, (c) by a nationally-recognized commercial overnight courier service that 
guarantees next day delivery and provides a receipt, or (d) by email with confirmed receipt. 
Such notices, etc. shall be addressed as follows: 

 
SRWA: 
 
Secretary 
Stanislaus Regional Water Authority 
156 South Broadway, Suite 270  
Turlock, CA 95380-5454 
Angelica.Gonsalves@ci.ceres.ca.us 

CONSULTANT: 
 
Katherine Yuen, CPA 
Vice President 
Maze & Associates 
3478 Buskirk Ave., Ste. 215 
Pleasant Hill, CA  94523 

 
Notice given as above will be deemed given (a) when delivered in person, (b) three days after 
deposited in prepaid, first class U.S. mail, (c) on the date of delivery as shown on the overnight 
courier service receipt, or (d) upon the sender’s receipt of an email from the other party 
confirming the delivery of the notice, etc. Any party may change its contact information by 
notifying the other party of the change in the manner provided above. 

 
26. AGENCY CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR: The SRWA’s contract administrator and contact 
person for this Agreement is: 

 
 Robert L. Granberg 
 General Manager  
 Stanislaus Regional Water Authority  
 156 S. Broadway, Suite 270 
 Turlock, CA 95380-5456 
 Telephone: (209) 668-4142 
 E-mail: granbergassociates@gmail.com 

  

mailto:granbergassociates@gmail.com


-8- 

  
SRWA, a Joint Powers Authority Consultant 
 
By: _______________________________ By: ______________________________ 
 Board Chair 
     Title: _____________________________ 
 
Date:    Print name: ________________________ 
 
    Date: _____________________________ 
APPROVED AS TO SUFFICIENCY: 
 
By: _______________________________ 
 Robert L. Granberg  
 General Manager 
  
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By: _______________________________ 
 Richard Shanahan, SRWA Attorney  
  
ATTEST: 
 
By: _______________________________ 
 Angelica Gonsalves, Board Secretary 

 



7B













Exhibit A 7B









































































































































Exhibit B 7B













 

 

 

 

 

Meeting location 
1235 Aldrich Rd 

Item 13. 

Map to 1235 Aldrich Rd 

   



 

 

Step by step driving directions 

 

 

Item 13. 

Directions to 1235 Aldrich Rd 

   


	102021 SRWA Board Meeting Agenda
	Special Board Meeting Notice & Agenda
	October 20, 2021 at 2:00 p.m.


	102021 SRWA Board Meeting Agenda
	102021 SRWA Board Meeting Agenda
	2A AB 361 Staff Report final 101821
	3B2 Financial Information to Board 10-20-2021
	3B2 Exhibit A for 10-20-2021
	3B2 Exhibit B for 10-20-2021
	3B2 Exhibit C for 10-20-2021
	3B2 Exhibit D for 10-20-2021
	5A 081921 SRWA Minutes DRAFT rlg 090921
	7A Prop 50 Staff Report
	7A Prop 50 Reso
	ATTEST:

	7B Maze Contract Staff Report 102021
	7B Audit RFP Professional Agrmt 101421
	7B Sept 2021 Audit RFP Cost Proposal - Maze & Associates
	7B Sept 2021 Audit RFP Scope of Work Exhibit A - Maze & Associates
	7B Sept 2021 Audit RFP Cost Proposal Exhibit B - Maze & Associates
	13 map





